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>IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
DALLAS DIVISION |

i

o

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA § B = A

s S=11CR~-037=Pp
V. §  Criminal No.

§
JERRY WAYNE VALEK §

also known as “Jessica Villerra” §
INDICTMENT
The Grand Jury Charges:
Count One

Production of Child Pornography
(Violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 2251(a))

Between on or about September 18, 2008 and July 25, 2009, in the Dallas
Division of the Northern District of Texas, and elsewhere, the defendant, Jerry Wayne
Valek, also known as “Jessica Villerra,” employed, used, persuaded, induced, enticed,
and coerced John Doe, a person under the age of eighteen (18) years, to engage in
sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depiction of such conduct,
knowing and having reason to know that such visual depiction would be transmitted using
any means and facility of interstate and foreign commerce, and that the visual depiction
was transmitted in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce. The visual depictions
transmitted by John Doe to Valek included the following described lascivious exhibitions

of John Doe’s genital and pubic area:
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File Name

Description

[redacted]21.jpg

A color image of a naked John Doe exposing his erect
penis while using a cellular-phone camera to photograph
his mirror-image.

[redacted]13.jpg

A color image of a naked John Doe photographing his
mirror-image with a cellular-phone camera while
holding his penis.

[redacted]22.jpg

A color image of John Doe holding his erect penis in his
left hand while taking a photograph of his mirror-image
with a cellular-phone camera in his right hand.

[redacted]9.jpg

A color image of John Doe wearing a blue shirt with his
underwear pulled down to his thighs, showing him
holding his erect penis.

[redacted]5.jpg

A color image of a naked John Doe, standing in a
bedroom, exposing his erect penis while standing with
his arms flexed behind his head.

In violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2251(a).
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Count Two
Production of Child Pornography
(Violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 2251(a))

Between on or about October 20, 2010 and October 21, 2010, in the Dallas
Division of the Northern District of Texas, and elsewhere, the defendant, Jerry Wayne
Valek, also known as “Jessica Villerra,” employed, used, persuaded, induced, enticed,
and coerced John Doe II, a person under the age of eighteen (18) years, to engage in
sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depiction of such conduct,
knowing and having reason to know that such visual depiction would be transmitted using
any means and facility bf interstate and foreign commerce, and that the visual depiction
was transmitted in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, and the visual depiétion

transmitted by John Doe II to Valek included the following described lascivious

exhibition of John Doe II’s genital and pubic area:

File Name Description

23.33.jpg A color image of John Doe II standing naked in front of

a mirror with his erect penis exposed, photographing his
p

mirror-image while flexing his muscles with his hands

behind his head.

In violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2251(a).
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Count Three

Production of Child Pornography
(Violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 2251(a))

Between on or about December 12, 2010 and December 14, 2010, in the Dallas

Division of the Northern District of Texas, and elsewhere, the defendant, Jerry Wayne

Valek, also known as “Jessica Villerra,” employed, used, persuaded, induced, enticed,

and coerced John Doe III, a person under the age of eighteen (18) years, to engage in

sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depictions of such

conduct, knowing and having reason to know that such visual depiction would be

transmitted using any means and facility of interstate and foreign commerce, and that the

visual depiction was transmitted in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce. The

visual depictions transmitted by John Doe III to Valek included the following described

lascivious exhibitions of John Doe III’s genital and pubic area:

File Name

Description

[redacted]3.jpg

A color image of a naked John Doe III using a cellular-
phone camera in his right hand to take a picture of his
mirror-image while holding his penis with his left hand.

[redacted]4.jpg

A color image of a naked John Doe III flexing one arm
with his hand behind his head and with his erect penis
exposed. John Doe III's opposing hand is seen holding
a cellular-phone camera to take a picture of his mirror-
image.

[redacted]S.jpg

A color image of a naked John Doe III exposing his
penis while flexing one arm with his hand behind his
head while holding a cellular-phone camera in his other
hand to take a picture of his mirror-image.
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[redacted]7.jpg

A color image of a naked John Doe III with one leg
elevated on a sink, exposing his erect penis while
photographing his mirror-image with a cellular-phone
camera.

In violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2251(a).
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Forfeiture Notice
[18 U.S.C. § 2253(a)]

Upon conviction of any or all of the offenses alleged in this indictment and
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2253(a), the defendant, Jerry Wayne Valek, also knéwn as
“Jessica Villerra,” shall forfeit (a) any visual depiction described in 18 U.S.C. § 2252 and
any book, magazine, periodical, film, videotape, or other matter which contains any such
visual depiction, which was produced, transported, mailed, shipped, or received in the
respective offense; (b) any property, real or personal, constituting or traceable to gross
profits or other proceeds obtained from the respective offense; and (c) and any property,
real or personal, used or intended to be used to commit or to promote the commission of
the respective offense and any property traceable to such property.

The above-referenced property subject to forfeiture from the defendant includes,
but is not limited to, the following:

(I)  One Apple iPhone, 8 gigabyte model, serial number 87938GXHY7H; and
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(2)  One Hewlett Package Pavilon laptop computer, model DV6000, serial
number CNF6522VGG.

In violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2253.

A TRUE BILL
FOREPERSON

JAMES T. JACKS

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

)
"
TASOND ACHALL
Assistant United States Attorney
Texas State Bar No. 24051295
1100 Commerce Street, Third Floor
Dallas, Texas 75242-1699
Telephone: 214.659.8600
Facsimile: 214.767.2846
Jason.Schall@usdoj.gov
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
DALLAS DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
V.

JERRY WAYNE VALEK (1)

INDICTMENT

18 U.S.C. §§ 2251(a)
Production of Child Pornography

18 U.S.C. §§ 2251(a)
Production of Child Pornography

18 U.S.C. §§ 2251(a)
Production of Child Pornography

18 U.S.C. § 2253(a)
Forfeiture Notice

3 Counts
A true bill rendered: w
DALLAS FOREPERSON
Filed in open court this day of ,AD.2011.

JERRY WAYNE VALEK IN CUSTODY .
____________________ RIS e

UNITED STATES DISTRFET/MAGISTRATE JUDGE5

Criminal Complaint 3:11-MJ-12 (Sealed)
Magistrate Case No. 3:11-MJ-12
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
- NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

Related Case Information

Superseding Indictment: L .}Yesf X No New Defendant: X! Yes L No

f— ' 2
1. Defendant Information Pending CR Case in NDTX: : _|Yes q No If@ mné)ﬁ_;_ 5
LA
) — o Search Warrant Case Number Sealed-3:11-MJ-18 & Sealed 3711-M
Juvenile: - Yes X No
R 20 from District of
If Yes Matter to be sealed: om DIStet o
B Yes | X No Magistrate Case Number 3:11-MJ-12 = //\\‘
~2) ,g':’;‘ffl’}/\‘x ;
Defendant Name A Y

Alias Name

JERRY WAYNE VALEK

Address

County in which offense was committed:

2, U.S. Attorney Information
AUSA Jason D. Schall

3. Interpreter
 Yes X No
4. Location Status

X Already in Federal Custody as of _1/13/2011

If Yes, list language and/or dialect:

Dallas

in_Seagoville

Already in State Custody
: On Pretrial Release

5. U.S.C. Citations

Total # of Counts as to This Defendant:

Citation

18 U.S.C. §§ 2251(a)

18 U.S.C. § 2253(a)

o 2110
U

3 | Pett); j Misdemeanor  [X| Felony
Description of Offense Chal:ged Count(s)
Production of Child Pornography 1-3

Forfeiture Notice

Signature of AUSA: CN\ [\/\I

NWRY




